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FIAFORMULAE
CHAMPIONSHIP
FORMULAE 2018-19

Round 5 — Hong Kong ePRIX — 10 March 2019

DECISION 9

From: The Stewards Date: 10 March 2019
To: The Team Managers of DS TECHEETAH and Virgin Racing Ltd.

Time (decision): 23.40 h

1. The protest alleged that Mr Sam Bird, Driver of Car #2 caused a collision and as a result breached
the provisions of Article 16.1 (d) of the 2018-2019 Sporting Regulations for the FIA Formula E
Championship.

2. The Competitor Representative of DS TECHEETAH and the Competitor Representative of Car #2
Virgin Racing Ltd were summoned to a hearing of the Stewards which commenced at 2107 hrs
(Hong Kong Time) Sunday March 10 2019.

3. Present at the hearing were:
e Mr David Clark (Team Manager DS Techeetah)
e Mr Pedro De La Rosa (DS Techeetah)
® Mr Leon Price (Team Manager Virgin Racing Ltd)
e Mr Alex Yoong (Driver Advisor)

4, The Stewards declared that the protests had been lodged within the applicable time limit as
specified in the International Sporting Code (“the Code”), accompanied by the required fee, and
hence decided to proceed to a Protest Hearing.

5. The parties confirmed that they were in receipt of the Protest and the Stewards Summons to
attend the Hearing.

6. The Parties were given the opportunity to make submissions regarding the validity of the Protest.
The parties agreed there were no objections to the Form of Protest or the matter being heard.

7. Mr De La Rosa tendered the following in support of their Protest:

That the time penalty of 5 seconds applied to Car #2 was not severe enough

Car #2 touched Car #36 several times prior to the incident

Car #36 generally maintained a consistent race line throughout the race

Car #36 didn’t brake any earlier on the lap of the incident than the previous laps

Car #36 had led the previous 28 laps of the race

The driver of Car #2 was aware of the braking points and race line that had been used by
Car #36 as he was following him for the preceding laps

Car #36 as the leader of the race has the right to choose the braking line

e The impact was heavy resulting in the puncture to Car #36 and as a result Car #36 retired
from the race
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The imposition of the penalty was insufficient and as a result generates a bad precedent for
other drivers, being getting away with a 5 second penalty for a collision

That the penalty encouraged other drivers to do the same but earlier in the race to recover
a time penalty

That the Competitor would not have protested had Car #36 been able to continue in the race
That the Driver of Car #25, also from his Team, DST, received a 5 second Time Penalty during
the Race and that they as a Team considered this a fair penalty as Car 25 did touch another
driver and passed him, however both were able to continue.

The penalty for cutting of a Chicane had been increased from previous events to a 10 second
stop and go penalty at the request of the Teams in the Championship and that as a result the
penalty was out of proportion.

DST is generally concerned with the amount of contact allowed in the current Season of
Formula E with the current Car.

8. Mr Leon Price tendered the following in reply to the submissions by DST

He disagreed that the Driver of Car #2 had hit Car #36 regularly during the race other than
during the incident in question

There was no damage to Car 2, other than damage as a result of the incident

Both the Driver of Car 36 and the Driver of Car #2 had mutual respect for each other
throughout the race despite three (3) safety car restarts.

The Driver of Car #2 felt that he had a “tow” into Turn 2 when following Car 36 prior to the
incident

The Driver of Car #2 felt that he was close enough to make an overtaking move

The Driver of Car #2 felt that Car #36 moved very slightly under brakes to unsettle Car #2,
and so that Car #36 could defend his line

The Driver of Car #2 didn’t want to go further to the right as the track was damp in this section
and as a result could have caused a larger incident

The Driver of Car #2 felt that he was able to brake sufficiently to avoid contact with Car #36.
That the Driver of Car #2 reiterated that there was no intent whatsoever in the incident that
did ultimately occur.

Further he submitted that contact is generally considered a part of Formula E, and that this
is contributed to by the physically bigger cars and narrow and tight race tracks.

If all contact was completely stopped in races, this would likely result in significantly reduced
overtaking.

He submitted that in his view the penalty was harsh compared to other similar incidents in
Season 5 of Formula E

He also stated that the resultant consequences of an incident should not be taken into
account whatsoever. For example, damage to a car as a result of an incident should not be
considered in deliberating on the size of a penalty.

Further he submitted that each incident should be judged on the incident itself and not what
happens as a result of an incident.

9. Mr De La Rosa and Mr David Clarke tendered the following additional submissions as a result of
those of Virgin Racing Ltd:

He disagreed that the outcome as a result of an incident should not be taken into account.
An example of this was the incident involving Car #25 with Car #8 during the race that
resulted in a 5 second Time Penalty as a result of contact and gaining a position.

He also tendered a Tweet from eRacing Magazine with a quote that was allegedly attributed
to the Driver of Car #2. A copy of the Tweet is attached to this Decision.

That in their view contact generally must be reduced as Drivers cannot be aware of the
ultimate outcome of an incident or its severity at the time of an incident
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10. The Parties advised that they had no further evidence to present or submissions to be made and
the Stewards adjourned the Hearing at 2155hrs to deliberate.

Reasons and Decisions:

1.
2.

That the Protest Lodged by DS Techeetah is dismissed.

That the Amended Provisional Classification issued at 2050hrs was correct in that a 5 second
time Penalty had been applied to Car #2 for a Breach of article 16.1 (d) — Causing a Collision of
the 2018-2019 Sporting Regulations for the FIA Formula E Championship.

There was no new evidence presented whatsoever that in any way supported an increase in
the severity of the Time Penalty against Car #2.

The outcome of an incident is not taken into account when considering a penalty and only the
incident itself on its merits.

That the ability to Protest the Provisional Results should not be used by a Competitor in a
manner so as to circumvent the regulations where certain Penalties are not Subject to Appeal.
The Protest Fee is forfeited in accordance with Article 13 of the ISC.

The Competitors are reminded of their Right of Appeal in accordance with Article 15 of the FIA
International Sporting Code.

Michael Masi Jaije Wong Julian Cheung Kim Hung
FIA Steward (Chairman) FIA Steward ASN Steward

Received by the Competitor:

Signature: ... evevvveeve e,
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4 Tweet

| eRacing Magazine v
@ERacingMag

Sam Bird explains his point of view of
his contact with @Andre_Lotterer: "lt's
very slippery down the inside. | brake
and locked up. It's a big shame. My
heart goes out to him. He drove a good
race. Sad it ended that way."

@DSTECHEETAH @EnvisionVirgin
#HKEPrix
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